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Senate Select Committee on Mobile and Manufactured Homes
March 12, 2002 Hearing, 2:30 — 4:30 p.m.
State Capitol, Room 2040, Sacramento, CA

Informational Hearing on
Code Enforcement Problems in Mobilehome Parks

Background Paper

Summary

This paper provides a thumbnail sketch of the issues that are the subject of this hearing. There are a number of
different state laws relating to mobilehomes and parks, including the Mobilehome Parks Act, the Mobilehomes-
Manufactured Housing Act, the Mobilehome Residency Law, and numerous other laws not unique to
mobilehomes, such as Public Utility Code requirements relating to master meter utilities and Health and Safety
Code drinking water safety standards. The Select Committee has received many complaints in recent years
alleging inadequate enforcement of a number of these laws, with problems or violations sometimes lasting for
years. Some enforcement issues have been reviewed before but are difficult to resolve. There is confusion
about how different laws or agencies work, there is overlapping bureaucracy, different attitudes about what
constitutes sufficient enforcement, and possibly inadequate resources to do the job.

Introduction

Select committees of the Legislature, unlike standing committees, do not hear or vote on legislation. Rather,
they research specialized issues and hold hearings which may result in recommendations for future legislation.
The Senate Select Committee on Mobile and Manufactured Homes receives a large volume of calls and
complaints from the public and as constituent referrals from legislators’ offices and state and local agencies.
The committee has received an increasing number of complaints regarding the alleged lack of enforcement of
existing laws relating to manufactured homes and mobilehome parks, specifically in the areas of landlord-
tenant, utility, occupational licensing, and health and safety laws. The common thread of these complaints is,
generally speaking, that while the Legislature has enacted many new laws relating to mobilehomes over the past
few decades, state and local governments either ignore or do not adequately enforce them.

Purpose
The purpose of the hearing is to take testimony on mobilehome and mobilehome park enforcement complaints

and ideas on how enforcement problems can be resolved. The committee will publish a committee transcript
and report at a subsequent date.

Procedure

The hearing is relatively informal. Witnesses will be asked to give statements or make presentations in the
order in which they appear on the agenda. Witnesses are not sworn in and cross-examination by opposing
parties is not permitted. However, witnesses are asked to identify themselves and their city of residence and
may be asked questions by legislators and staff on the committee panel. Each presentation should be short and
to the point, about 5 minutes or less, and witnesses should avoid repetitious testimony. Written information will
also be accepted by the committee for the record.



Major Mobilehome Laws & Regulations

There are many laws - federal, state and local - that are either unique to or affect manufactured housing. For the
purposes of this hearing, the focus is on state laws. The major bodies of state law relating to manufactured
homes and parks include:

The Mobilehome Parks Act: These Health and Safety Code provisions authorize the

Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) to regulate the construction, use, maintenance,
and occupancy of mobilehome parks and the installation, use, maintenance and occupancy of mobilehomes in
those parks. Specific requirements, such as set back requirements for mobilehomes from the lot lines, utility
connections, notices or signs, the width of park roadways, or specifications for storage sheds, for example, are
spelled out, not in statute, but by a multitude of department regulations, commonly known as “Title 25” of the
California Code of Regulations. These regulations are enforced by inspection at the time of the construction of
the park, as a condition of granting the initial permit to operate, and subsequently upon complaint. Both park
owners and homeowners are subject to citation. HCD has agreements with 88 local jurisdictions to carry out
these inspections within parks in their communities. Between 1991 and 1999, HCD or local agencies also
conducted at least one full or “regular’” inspection of every mobilehome park in the state. The renewal of the
“regular” inspection program for 2000-2006 focuses the 7-year full inspection on parks with the worst record of
violations during the first inspection cycle (1991-1999). Citations for Parks Act violations, depending on the
nature of the violation, either must be corrected immediately or within 90 days. Complaints to the committee
over the past few years generally include allegations that enforcement agencies are too slow to respond, that
inspectors refuse to cite some violations, that follow-through by inspectors with homeowners on their
complaints i1s uncommon or non-existent, and that even where violations are cited enforcement is too slow or
non-existent, resulting in substandard conditions that may last for years.

The Mobilehomes-Manufactured Housing Act of 1980: HCD also enforces Health and Safety Code
provisions regulating the sale, installation, registration and license fee taxation of manufactured homes.
Mobilehome dealers sell both new and used manufactured homes, and one of HCD’s primary functions is to
license mobilehome dealers and salespersons. Among other dealer laws, HCD enforces requirements that
dealers must sell a mobilehome at the advertised price, display the suggested manufacturer’s price by make and
model on each new home sold on the dealer’s lot, use a purchase contract, place all buyer deposits in an escrow
not controlled by the dealer, and be responsible for correcting defects in the home under a one-year warranty
applicable to new manufactured homes sold in California. Many of the enforcement complaints received by the
committee in this area include unlicensed activity, failure to correct defects under warranty, and failure to fulfill
dealer promises. The committee has also received some complaints about real estate brokers, licensed by the
Department of Real Estate (DRE), who are authorized to sell only used mobilehomes.

The Mobilehome Residency Law (MRL): The MRL is basically the landlord-tenant law for mobilehome
parks and manufactured housing communities. These Civil Code sections set forth the requirements for rent
and fee increases, content of the rental agreement, just cause eviction, rent control-exempt leases, guests, pets,
park rules, resale of the mobilehome in place, and the like. MRL violations, like provisions of conventional
landlord-tenant law, are enforced by the courts, not state or local administrative agencies. Among the
complaints the committee receives, MRL problems are probably the most common. These include claims that
some park managers raise rents or fees without adequate notice, change rules without notice, refuse to meet
residents about rule changes as required by law, refuse to permit homeowners to resell their homes that meet
code in the park to another party, impose limitations on guests more stringent than the law allows, etc.
Although the Legislature has made many changes or additions to the MRL over the past 20 years to protect
homeowners, a frequent complaint by homeowners is that they carry the burden of suing if the park
management will not comply with the provisions of the MRL. Homeowners contend that most of them cannot
afford to hire an attorney and, in any case, there are few attorneys knowledgeable about mobilehome law who
will take individual cases. In the past, some homeowners have argued that the state Attorney General, district
attorneys, or other state or local agencies should be responsible to enforce the Mobilehome Residency Law.
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Master-meter Utility Laws: The Public Utilities Code governs various aspects of gas, electric and water
service in mobilehome parks. In most parks utility service is provided by the park owner to individual
mobilehome spaces through a so-called ‘master meter’ system, with the public utility providing water or power
to the master meter but not to individual park spaces. The park operates and controls the utility system within
the park, distributing the water or power to individual spaces in the park that is normally submetered. The
Public Utilities Code provides that master-meter customers, including mobilehome parks, shall charge
residential users at the same rate applicable if the user were receiving electric, gas or water service directly from
a regulated utility, and a master-meter customer who receives a gas or electric rebate from a public utility shall
credit residents for their share of the rebate. Master-meter parks are also required to provide an itemized billing
of charges for utilities, including opening and closing readings for the meter, and post, in a conspicuous place in
the park, the local utility’s residential electric or gas rate schedule. The committee has fielded complaints
about the failure of some parks to comply with these requirements. But because park residents are serviced by
the parks and do not have a direct relationship with utilities regulated by the California Public Utilities
Commission (PUC), the PUC has been unwilling to handle most of these complaints. Some county sealers
have been willing to look into some of these issues, but generally complainants have had to seek legal redress
for enforcement.

Safe Water Issues: The Department of Health Services (DHS) is responsible for enforcing drinking water
quality standards under the Health & Safety Code and certifying potable water treatment operators of private
water systems. County environmental health departments also have responsibility for enforcing and monitoring
health standards to assure that drinking water is not contaminated. Most parks receive their water from the city
or a public water district, others from a water company regulated by the PUC. But mobilehome parks in small
towns or rural areas that are not hooked up to municipal water systems have their own wells or obtain drinking
water from lakes or streams. Park operators or their contracted water treatment operators must treat the park
water. A park that provides water to its residents from water supplies that it owns is not regulated by the Public
Utilities Commission, although upon a complaint the PUC has jurisdiction to determine whether the rates
charged are just and reasonable and whether the service provided is adequate. Within the past year, the
committee has received several complaints about parks with long-standing problems of contamination, usually
bacterial or chemical, of the park’s drinking water. In more than one case, residents complain that the county
has allowed the park management to take samples of well water and bring them to the county for testing without
cross checking to determine whether the well water is coming from the wells or another source. In another
case, where a park pumps contaminated water from an adjacent lake, the park has been out of compliance with
treatment standards since at least 1994 and under citation by DHS since early 1999. Attempts to excavate a
well and construct a new treatment system have been fraught with problems, and DHS has continued to extend
the park owner’s deadline for compliance at various times for over two years. In yet another park, a county
health department has given the park a waiver from complying with standards because potable water manually
chlorinated is available at the park’s laundry room, where for 4 years residents say they have had to take their
own empty bottles to fill themselves. Generally, complainants believe agencies responsible for assuring their
water is safe are not doing the job.

Comments

Revisited. This is not the first hearing held on enforcement issues, but the issues are difficult to resolve. Ina
December 2000 hearing in Anaheim, the committee considered issues specifically involving enforcement of the
Mobilehome Parks Act. At an April 2001 hearing in Garden Grove, the committee reviewed enforcement of
master-meter utility laws. Since those hearings, several legislative proposals were introduced that addressed
some of these issues. Senate Bill 339 (Dunn, 2001), among other provisions, would have required HCD and
local enforcement agencies to follow-through with complainants by informing them of the date they would
inspect and let the complainant know the result of the inspection. This bill passed the Senate but died in the
Assembly Appropriations Committee last August. Another bill, Assembly Bill 1648 (Salinas, 2001), would
have permitted HCD inspectors to impose fines of $100 to $250 for citations that were not fixed within 30 days
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of a final notice. That bill was never heard in the Assembly Appropriations Committee, where it died in
January. In response to the utility hearing, Senate Bill 920 (Dunn, 2001) amended the MRL to require that
parks pass on information to residents provided to them by utilities about the utilities’ CARE rate discount
program and pass through any CARE rate discounts to Jow-income residents who qualify for the program. The
bill passed and was signed by the Governor. The Select Committee is also currently working with the PUC to
try to get that agency to establish procedures for accepting master-meter resident complaints.

Legislature as enforcer? The Legislature can authorize or even mandate — but essentially enforcement
ultimately is an administrative matter. Public understanding of how the various branches of government -
legislative, executive, and judicial - function is important. The Senate Select Committee on Mobile and
Manufactured Homes is involved in the law making process but has no administrative authority. Complainants
are often as frustrated that the committee can hold oversight hearings or jawbone administrators but has no
authority to order them to carry out the laws.

How the laws work. Part of the problem with enforcement is confusion on the part of complainants on how the
laws work. The Mobilehome Residency Law (MRL) is not enforced by a government agency. Landlord-tenant
laws, including the MRL, are civil laws enforced by the courts. Unless it is a small claims court matter (under
$5,000) this requires the aggrieved party to hire an attorney to go to court to obtain enforcement and/or
damages. HCD or local enforcement agencies enforce the Mobilehome Parks Act (Title 25), but these agencies
have limitations as well. Like a police officer citing a speeder for a traffic violation, code inspectors can cite a
park for a health and safety violation but have no authority to prosecute the violator in court. That is the district
attorney’s job. If the district attorney will not prosecute, that is as far as it goes.

Bureaucratic tango. In some cases the committee has looked into, particularly in the utility and water quality
areas, there is almost a maze to confront about which agency has jurisdiction. In some cases there appears to be
overlapping jurisdiction, with different agencies having different powers. One agency may be able to cite the
park for failure to provide adequate water to residents and order the park to supply bottled water. Another may
be able to cite a park for violation of drinking water standards and impose a “boil order.” Enforcement
agencies, like a district attorney in a criminal case, have some discretion on whether to enforce or prosecute,
depending on the circumstances or the evidence. One agency may hesitate to take action, claiming another has
jurisdiction, or awaiting the other to take some action. The committee has found that some agency officials at
both the state and local level are very responsive, while others are almost reluctant to act. At the field level,
there is inconsistency as well. Some inspectors are more aggressive, while others don’t like confrontation and
prefer the ““carrot and stick™ approach. Whether this is a matter of attitude about a given case or circumstances
of the problem, or attitude about how the law should be enforced, is not always clear.

Dollars and sense. There may also be a problem of resources. For example, in the past, some have said that
the fee structure originally enacted 20 plus years ago to support enforcement of the Mobilehome Parks Act is
now inadequate. Costs of salaries, benefits, equipment and travel have increased for government as well as the
private sector. To date both park owner and mobilehome owner groups have opposed fee increases for
inspection programs. If the public wants a higher level of enforcement, such as more inspectors in the field,
more dollars will have to come from somewhere to pay for it.

New Bills. Two new bills just introduced in 2002 appear to also address enforcement issues. These include
Senate Bill 1778 (Dunn), relating to dealer escrows and fines for violations of dealer laws, and Assembly Bill
2382 (Corbett), giving county counsels, city attorneys or the state Attorney General authority to bring nuisance
actions under both the MRL and the Mobilehome Parks Act.

HHH
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SENATE SELECT COMMITTEE ON MOBILE AND
MANUFACTURED HOMES

“Code Enforcement Problems in Mobilehome Parks”

March 12, 2002
Sacramento, CA

Senator Joe Dunn, Chair

SENATOR JOE DUNN, CHAIR: Good afternoon everybody. My
name is Senator Joe Dunn. I'm the Chair of the Select Committee on
Mobile and Manufactured Homes. On one side of me is John, on the
other side is Melanie, both staff to the committee. Theyre the ones who
make it work, actually, and two individuals that I think probably
everybody in this room have had many contacts with, and dealings with,
over the years on mobile and manufactured home community issues.

We are here today on one very specific issue, and that is, the issue
of enforcement. I want to make some introductory comments; they are
going to be brief; and then I want to get right to the witnesses. We have
approximately 20 witnesses. We have until exactly 4:30. The discipline
in today’s hearing is going to be rather severe to keep everybody on target
on that timeframe. So, let me get right to my introductory comments so
we can get to the more important issue, which is to hear from the
witnesses today.

It’s one thing to get the Legislature to enact laws about how things
should occur, or not occur, within our mobile and manufactured home
communities; it’s another thing to get those laws enforced.

There is a background paper, as I think most of you now have a

copy of, that’s on the back table, that covers many of the major, though



not all, the laws that affect mobilehome parks; what they are and how
those laws work.

We have heard from many of you that are here today and many
throughout the State of California, about how, in the view of the
residents, the state or local officials either are not, or won’t, enforce these
laws. Or, where they do enforce laws, they do so poorly.

The issue before us today, and for those of you who are testifying,
and you know who you are, we have one question that we want each and
everyone of you to address, and that is, how can we get better
enforcement of the laws that are currently in place with respect to our
mobile and manufactured home communities?

[ know many of you have specific problems related to your park, or
your community. Our preference would be, that as to those specific
issues, those are best provided to the committee via a letter to the
committee.

Today, again, the question is, how do we get better enforcement?
We, the committee, are painfully aware that there are huge enforcement
problems, and in virtually every park there is some issue that falls into
this category. But our focus today is how we get better enforcement, not
the issue of whether we need better enforcement; we know that that is
necessary. We're looking to how we get the better enforcement.

[ want to make sure though that everybody has realistic
expectations. Many of you have been to our committee hearings before
amd have been involved in the political process over the years. You know
that it is a rather lengthy, frustrating process, and that if we identify
even a potential solution today, that solution won’t be in place tomorrow.
It takes quite a bit of time to get even the least controversial issue

through the legislative process and actually enact it into law. So, please



make sure everybody bears in mind, particularly those who are new to
the process, that even if we hear a consistent recommendation on how to
obtain better enforcement, it will take time to get there. So, please be
patient with the process.

Also, bear in mind, we’ve been here before. This is not a new issue.
This is an issue that the Legislature has examined year in and year out.
There have been proposals almost every year on how to get better
enforcement. Most, unfortunately, have died throughout the process for
one reason or another. And, in fact, there is new legislation already
pending in this legislative cycle that address some of the enforcement
issues, and time will tell whether there is any better success in getting
them through the entire legislative process.

Also, bear in mind that the solution doesn’t necessarily have to be
legislation. We are trying to develop more cooperative relationships
between park owners and resident groups, particularly in more
troublesome areas so that we can try to resolve some of these problems
short of legislation. Obviously, legislation is always an option, but
sometimes it’s not the best option.

A few of the nuts and bolts today: First of all, when you’re called to
testify, I'm going to call you up in groups of threes. When you start your
testimony, please, state your name and your city of residence clearly so
that everybody can hear. You need to limit your comments, and I'm
going to underscore this quite a few times, to five minutes or less. And,
John will be monitoring the time clock. The fact that it’s limited to five
minutes does not mean that you have to take five minutes. If you can do
your comments in less than that time, it will be greatly appreciated.
However, once you hit the five minute timeframe, we are going to have to

cut you off. So, please, bear that in mind. Take no offense if we have to



stop your testimony. But, five minutes is the limit for any one speaker.
Again, we appreciate anybody who can do -- make your points in less
than that five-minute time span.

As you can see, we have a rather crowded house today. For those
of you who have cell phones, either turn them off, or turn them on
vibrate so we don'’t all have to be disturbed by the rest of the world trying
to get ahold of you today. If you have written materials, if you please give
them to one of our Sergeants. You don’t need to give them to us. You
can give them to the Sergeants. They will, of course, get them to us. So,
if you have written materials, please handle them in that respect.

You’ll note that some of the other committee members are missing
at this point in time. It doesn’t mean they don’t care about this issue,
not at all. As those who are familiar with the process realize, there are
always multiple hearings and different committees going on at the same
time. That’s true this afternoon. And I expect that several of the other
committee members may wander in and out as their time allows. And
while we are not voting on anything specifically today, for those
committee members who do not make it here, we will fully brief both the
members and their offices as to the testimony that we hear today.

Again, I want to underscore, as I warned you I would, five minutes
or less for any of the witnesses that will testify today. I will be calling
you up in groups of three. At the end, we will, or after the hearing is
done today, there will be a time when a report is ready as far as the
testimony that was provided today. It will be put tbgether in written
form. Although I will address this at the end, if you would like a copy of
that, there is a signup sheet for that record of this hearing. Please put

your name and address on it.



For those of you who would like to testify that are not on our
witness list, if everybody talks for one minute, we’ll be able to add some
on to it. I'm not holding my breath for that, however. And so, if we do
not have additional time before 4:30, to add on some who are not
currently on the list, that doesn’t mean your voice won'’t be heard. If you
have written testimony today, turn it in, as it will take us some time to
put this record together. We certainly will accept a letter from you in the
coming days saying, “I wish I could have testified. Here is what I would
have said,” and we accept that as well, too. That’s equally as effective as
those folks who are testifying today.

So, enough. Unless, John, do you have anything you’d like to add?

Just to forewarn you, my third time, John already has his watch
off. It’s here. He’s going to monitor how many minutes for everybody.

Okay, let’s start with our first three witnesses. If I mispronounce
your name, please pardon me. But the first three are, Rosemary Tomai,
Steve Gullage and Fred Haines. If those three individuals would come
forward. And we will go in the order that I call them, as the list has been
given to me. And remember everybody, as these three are settling in, the
question we really want to hear from each witness is, how can we, the
Legislature, improve the enforcement process? We know enforcement is
a problem. You don’t have to convince us of that. We need to hear your
recommendations on how we get better enforcement.

Rosemary, please start by stating your name and your city of
residence and then to your testimony.

MS. ROSEMARY TOMAI: Thank you. Good afternoon, Senator
Dunn and Mr. Tennyson and Melanie. My name is Rosemary Tomai. I'm
president of the Homeowners Coalition of Mobilehome Parks of Tuolumne

County, and it’s a non-profit public benefit corporation. And we also



have a very good rent control ordinance in that county. And we
represent 48 parks in the county.

And I know there have been serious water problems throughout the
state, and we've had our share in Tuolumne County.

In one park, called Sierra Village, there was no water. The
homeowners were told by management, “There’s plenty of snow up here
that can be melted and used for drinking, cooking and bathroom
purposes.”

When calls started coming into the Coalition, homeowners were
advised that this would be a health hazard and to notify the county
environmental health department. The department responded
immediately, and the park owners trucked in potable water until the
system could be repaired.

However, this didn’t come out that way in Gold Rush Mobilehome
Park. Our Tuolumne County ordinance also has a “fair rate of return”
clause in there which we felt was only proper to have, and it is enforced
by our county supervisors.

And the people that purchased Columbia Mobilehome Park asked
for a “fair rate of return” when they purchased the park. And so, when
the Gold -- oh gosh, I jumped the gun. So, on March of 2001, the new
owners took over. And on June the 7t the Housing and Community
Develop Department sent a notice of violation to the homeowners -- 1
mean to the park owners and to the Columbia Mobilehome Park is listing
those things constituting an unreasonable risk to life, health and safety
required to be corrected within 90 days. The 90 days has turned into
eight months, and that happens to be Exhibit 2. And these are just

some of the problems that we’re having in mobilehome parks.



And back to Gold Rush Mobilehome Park, they had a water
problem for three years. And four homeowners there have had giardia.
Homeowners in spaces five and nine have skin problems. And I don’t
know if you've ever heard of Hepatitis E. It’s very rare in the United
States, and it is caused by bacteria in the water. And the lady in space
26 has this disease. That’s your first Exhibit, incidentally, and there’s a
completed and highlighted letter that I'll present to you in Exhibit 1.

And I would read excerpts from her letter, but I'd like to save time if
it’s all right.

SENATOR DUNN: Please.

MS. TOMAI: And the residents have not been furnished sufficient
water for drinking and cooking. And please be reminded that these park
residents are seniors and/or, disabled with incomes below the poverty
level.

And as far as that goes, I would like to say, thank you, to all the
people that have invited us. And I'd like to thank each and everyone of
you for all the hard work that you've done on the Senate Select
Committee and continue to do throughout the state. And I wanted to say
thank you for this opportunity. And I'd like to have my Exhibits 1, 2 and
3 recorded, please.

SENATOR DUNN: Okay. All right. Rosemary, thank you. Hold
on. What I want to do is have all three witnesses testify, then I may have
some follow-up questions, as well. So, the Sergeant right next to you,
just give the Exhibits to him. And while you’re doing so, Rosemary, let’s
move onto -- I'm assuming you’re through with your comments,
Rosemary? Are you through with your comments?

MS. TOMAI: Yes. Thank you.

SENATOR DUNN: Okay. All right, Steve.



MR. STEVE GULLAGE: Good afternoon, Senator Dunn, Mr.
Tennyson, Senator Chesbro and Melanie. My name is Steve Gullage. I'm
from Huntington Beach. I'm also the state president of Golden State
Manufactured Homeowners Association, or, League. And, I came here
today prepared to list many of the complaints that we get in our home
office that we receive almost daily relating to inadequate enforcement of
our state laws. But, having reviewed the list of witnesses who have
volunteered to give statements today, and the fact that most, if not all of
them, are mobilehome owners, I'm sure that anything that I would bring
to the table would be almost a duplication of what they’re going to be
bringing to you. So, rather than take the wind out of their sails, I would
like to just expound on one, just one particular issue that has been
bothering me lately, and one that I am sure the Senator is familiar with,
and it seems to be a bureaucratic road blocking, if that could be the
proper term.

So many times we have a cut and dried case where there is an
absolute violation of a health and safety law and we find that
enforcement of that law has been blocked by a person in a state agency
who has the power to block of an enforcement in order to appease,
probably, the park owner who is a violator, rather than bring him to the
justice that he so rightly deserves.

And so, consequently, a lot of our people feel that they lose trust in
the agency that is supposed to be doing the enforcing. And so,
consequently, they just lose all hope of trying to get the laws that we've
worked so hard to have enacted be enforced. When they go to a district
attorney to try to get something done for them to work on, the district
attorney seems to have something that’s a little more important to work

on, and consequently just can’t handle something like that.



We would like to see a change in our laws that would state that a
district attorney -- [ believe our laws say that they “may” work on a
violation. [ would like to see that law changed to where they “shall,” so
that they are dedicated to enforcing the laws, so that the enforcernent of
all these laws that we’ve worked so hard to get are something that we can
realize.

And so, I don’t want to expound too much time. But I know that
one case that we have found where an official has overstepped his
authority in stopping enforcement is one that you’re very familiar with,
and this is, the Ford’s Acres water problem. And the gentleman that sits
to my right has been a victim of that lack of enforcement for
approximately eight years.

And so, I would like to, whatever time [ have, I’d like to dedicate my
time to Mr. Fred Haines, if it’s possible.

SENATOR DUNN: Steve, thank you. And just for -- if everybody
heard what Steve’s recommendation was, to change it from “may,” to
make it mandatory for DAs to move it forward with enforcement actions.
There is currently pending legislation that would also give the AG, city
attorneys and county councils, broader authority on the residency laws
and parks nuisance enforcements, as well, too. I just wanted to note
that that legislation currently is out there.

Mr. Haines, please.

MR. FRED HAINES: My name is Fred Haines. I'm a resident of
Ford’s Acres Mobilehome Park in Kelseyville.

The rule of law, the California Health and Safety Code is quite
specific concerning the intent of the Legislature, the required quality of

water and the means for the Department of Health Services to monitor



and to enforce the regulations. And I'll skip reading them because I'm
sure you'’re familiar with them.

Practice: During the past eight years, Ford’s Acres water system
has been cited ten times both in regard to uncertified means of water
treatment, and the delivery of water of unacceptable quality to the
residents. Those violations of law have been compounded by continuous
failure of the Department of Health Services, as well as the Department
of Housing and Community Development to enforce correction of those
violations. As characterized by my wife, the regulators are the drivers of
the getaway car for the bank robbers. It is this repetitious behavior that
assures a park owner that he can violate the law without jeopardy, and
that the resident cannot obtain a remedy from the bureaucracy, because
the schedule of the bureaucrat is quite apparently directed to serve the
interest of the park owner.

I brought samples of water, but I'll skip that because it’s well
documented.

Health: For 25 years, my wife has had an immune disorder called
Lupus, which affects both internal and external organs. Four years ago,
she acquired another immune disorder named Parvo virus B19, which
may have originated with unsafe water. For 70 years, I've had a lung
disease named bronchiectasis. For four years I've had a heart disorder
known as tachycardia. These conditions, coupled with our advanced
years, make us very fearful of acquiring further health problems caused
by the use of unhealthful water.

Safety: Mr. Chair, you expressed the motive for this hearing, the
problem we want to look at is how the bureaucracy can pick and choose

among the laws the Legislature enacts.
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The regulations which pertain to public water systems require the
Department of Health Services to certify the operator, inspect the water
system, ascertain the financial capability of the owner, then, to issue a
permit to operate the system, in that order. Failure to issue a permit for
seven years, confirms the fact of pick and choose. It certainly proves
that the bureaucracy cannot be trusted with appropriate enforcement.

Focus: The Legislature should provide for the services of an
independent engineer who will audit the findings of the bureaucracy, just
as the cash drawer is balanced at the end of the day. The Legislature
should provide funding for legal enforcement when recommended by an
independent engineer, thus placing a hammer of justice in the
Mobilehome Residency Law.

Conclusion: Mr. Chair, in the beginning of my remarks I cited, I
didn’t read them, five sections from the California Code of Regulations.
There is a word which is a common theme in these laws....health.

It is our health that is at risk at Ford’s Acres Mobilehome Park. It
is our health that the Legislature proposed to protect in enacting the
laws quoted here. It is our health that my wife and myself rely upon for
the enjoyment of our later years. It is our health which will benefit from
this new method of enforcement.

I thank you very much.

SENATOR DUNN: Mr. Haines, do you have an extra copy of your
comments.

MR. HAINES: Yes, | have.

SENATOR DUNN: Make sure you give them to the Sergeants so
that we have them as well too, if you would please, Mr. Haines. Any

questions for this panel? Senator Chesbro.
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SENATOR WESLEY CHESBRO: Well, Mr. Chairman, I just -- of
course, this is my district, so I'm especially sensitive to it. But, certainly,
this example jumps out as pointing out the inadequacy of the response of
the various regulatory enforcement agencies. And I really feel for the
residents of this park. I know you, Mr. Chairman, and the committee,
have responded very forcefully. And I think we need to assist these folks.
But it’s not enough for us to intervene on an individual case. We need to
make sure that the regulatory process doesn’t allow this to happen
again. So I hope we use it not just as a case where the residents deserve
relief, but also as one that points out the need for change, and reform,
and better enforcement at all levels to protect residents of mobilehome
parks.

So, thank you very much for bringing it to us. And I'm sorry on
behalf of state government, even though we’re the legislative branch, that
you’ve had to put up with this mess for so long.

MR. HAINES: [ appreciate your help too.

SENATOR DUNN: Thank you, Senator Chesbro. Seeing no further
questions, I'd like to thank each of the three of you. And while they are
heading back to their seats, I just want to use them as a shining star
example, of all three, who maintained the five-minute limit. Greatly
appreciated. And let’s call up the next three. They are, Coleman Persily,
Donna Simpson and Milt Burdick. Let’s start with Coleman.

MR. COLEMAN PERSILY: My name is Coleman Persily. I'm vice
president in charge of Northern California of the GSMOL. 1 live in San
Rafael, California. And I'm here to testify as requested. So I wrote it out
so I'd make sure I'm within your five minutes, otherwise I'd speak an

hour.
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Dear State Senator Joe Dunn and members of the State
Legislature: Many of our speakers will endeavor to explain why
something must be done to enforce the MRL laws now in existence and
Title 25 laws which protect health and safety of residents in mobilehome
parks.

Hundreds of cases have been brought forward to prove that
enforcement of the existing MRL laws is necessary. You will not be the
first state to pass laws to protect residents of mobilehome parks. We
already have a statute which states that the district attorneys may
prosecute for failure to maintain. All you have to do is change one word
from “may” to “shall.”

Perhaps vou may want to copy laws passed by other state
legislatures. The State of Minnesota, Rhode Island and possibly Florida,
have enforcement laws. It is for the benefit of the residents in parks, to
enable the residents to buy the parks. A number of states give the
residents the first right to buy a park when it is up for sale.

If you want further details as to the enforcement and first right of
residents to buy the park, please do not hesitate to contact me. All we
are asking is what is right.

Your legislative body has tried very hard to protect and don’t think
we don’t appreciate it. You have spent much time and money to protect
us. AllI ask is that you direct the district attorneys to enforce the MRL
laws and simply change the word from “may” to “shall.”

Thank you ever so much for having this hearing, and I hope the
thousands of residents in mobilehome parks will benefit from this
hearing.

Thank you.

SENATOR DUNN: Coleman, thank you very much. Milt.
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MR. MILT BURDICK: My name is Milt Burdick. I am from Brea,
California, in Orange County. [ am president of Chapter 955 of Hollydale
Mobilehome Park.

[ hope that the Senator from Palo Alto, anyway, Stanford, has the
same problems that we have in Orange County. I would like to open up
with the part taken from the GSMOL newspaper, of eleven cases that are
pending in the courts, showing the magnitude of the laws and the
violations of the Mobilehome Residency Law and Title 25 and the issue at
hand there.

And Senator Dunn held a hearing in Anaheim on December 14,
2000. And the issues that he brought up at the December 14t hearing
still apply today; maybe some few minor changes; maybe more.

Another item is that, when you have disclosure -- Senator Dunn, in
the past, introduced a bill which was signed by the governor, for
disclosure notices. This should also be given to the purchaser of
mobilehomes. It’s got a lot of tremendous information about
mobilehomes and the rules and regulations. And this should be made a
requirement that this be given out to the new purchaser of mobilehomes
so they understand what they are getting into. Not like me, jumping in
and then finding out that the water is too deep.

Another item is, I think they should -- that the state should set up
a single website to codify all these laws, rules and regulations that a
person can go in on the internet and research these and maybe have
links to other areas where they affect mobilehome parks.

Inspectors: We have a shortage of inspectors in HCD in the
northern and southern part of the state. We don’t have enough funds.

We had $10 billion that was done away with in the energy shortage. Well
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I have a few suggestions where we can come up with some additional
funds.

Increase the fees in Title 25, such as article 1 section -- I listed all
the sections. I'm not going into them. You each have a copy of my
testimony. So it’s in Title 25, increase the fees and get additional funds
that will be used for hiring additional inspectors. Appendix B - decals,
etc. Appendix C - there are some things in there that you can go in there
and increase these fines, fees or whatever you want to call them, to hire
more inspectors.

Another two items I have are: 1) assess each owner of a
mobilehome $10 per year to be used for the enforcement of Mobilehome
Residency Laws in Title 25 and other laws that affect mobilehomes; and
2) assess the owners of the park, the park owners, $10 per space
regardless whether it’s rented or not. These funds will be used only to
hire additional inspectors and for enforcing the laws if it even takes going
to court. We already have a similar law like this in the Health and Safety
Code 18502(c)(2)(3), and the owners presently split that with some of the
parks; like in my particular case, the fee is $4, and we, as the residents,
pay $2. And then the thing is, the park owners cannot pass this cost
through to homeowners as a fee. Rent cannot be increased to cover the
cost. If the park owners are in a rent control area, a request can be
made to the rent control board to split the cost 50/50 with residents,
using rents as the medium.

Due to the lack of enforcement the tree and driveway law is almost
a farce. The owners just laugh at us. And in my particular park they tell
us if we have a tree and driveway problem we have to contact HCD to

have an inspector come out to say it’s unsafe, then they might do
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something about it. Try to get a hold of HCD, and try to get an inspector
out there. Good luck.

The other part is, some of the inspectors that HCD has hired aren’t
qualified. I have a letter here that I submitted as part of my testimony
from an inspector from the Riverside Department. He didn’t even know
what in the hell Title 25 was.

He said, “I'm not familiar with that law.”

Then I asked him, I said, “Well, you know, 'm a GSMOL member.”

He said, “What the hell is GSMOL?”

So, here’s two key people in HCD and they don’t even know what
we’re talking about. And it was on a lot line, encroachment on a lot line,
on my lot.

And he said, “l don’t see anything wrong with what you'’re talking
about.”

I said, “Well, the thing that’s wrong is this piece of thing is in my lot
and it should be in the neighbor’s lot.”

He said, “So what?”

And so this is the attitude of somebody inspecting -- okay, and I
conclude.

Thank you for your hearing. And I have a letter here from the
president of our homeowners group that is submitted as part of the
testimony. Thank you very much.

SENATOR DUNN: Milt, have you already turned that in, that letter
you just identified?

MR. BURDICK: Yes. Everything I just said is in that packet; a

copy for each committee member.
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SENATOR DUNN: All right. Great. Thank you, Coleman. Thank
you, Milt, very, very much. Let’s go to the next three panelists who are,
Bill Clement, David Burwell and Fred Irwin.

Again, [ want to extend a thank you. All the witnesses have been
doing a great job in staying within the time constraints. I greatly
appreciate it.

Okay, let’s start in the order that I called them. Mr. Clement.

MR. BILL CLEMENT: Wonderful. Can | take Rosemary’s place?
She wasn’t here for five minutes.

My name is Bill Clement. I'm a resident of the Castle Crags River
Resort in Castella, California. I found it very difficult to reduce to the five
minutes the frustrations that | have endured with the Castle Crags River
Resort and HCD.

Since April 18, 2000, Castle Crags River Resort has been in
violation of 30 Mobilehome Residency Laws, 21 violations of the Health
and Safety Code, Title 25, and the California Fire Code. I presently have
four file drawers and three brief cases filled with letters that I have
written to HCD, the Public Health, Senator Johannessen, Senator
Dickson, John Tennyson, Senator Dunn, the Governor, the Office of
Ombudsman, just to mention a few. I've been to court for an eviction.
I've been harassed, and my space has been used as a dumping ground.

On, or about, March of 2000, I began requesting an inspection and
enforcement by HCD. One year later, approximately March of 2001, I
received notification that an inspection would be held within 60 days.
After the 60 days had elapsed and no inspection had been made, I wrote
to the Legislature, requesting that action be taken and implement the

inspection as soon as possible.
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HCD, again, sent out their notification of their impending
inspection for the second time.

On July 6, 2001, I submitted to HCD a packet listing the above
mentioned violations, complete with each violation and the citation of the
California Civil Code that applied to each infraction. This entire packet
consumed 60 pages in its entirety.

The result was that the Mobilehome Residency Law was not
addressed due to HCD’s lack of power to enforce it. The other 28
violations were addressed by HCD in their letter to me on September 4,
2001. I took issue with their responses, and particularly on two
violations that were not cited. The response of HCD bordered on the
somewhat ludicrous.

On one item, on lack of posting the Emergency Procedure, HCD
stated that the department has not classified this violation as an
immediate or unreasonable risk to life, health or safety. Therefore, no
citation was issued. Emergency? I guess what I'm supposed to call is
911, and they’re going to come out and repair my septic tank.

The other one was on the lack of an Ombudsman sign. The
department has not classified this violation as an immediate or
unreasonable risk to life, safety or health. Therefore, no citation was
issued.

If HCD can override the Legislature and the Governor’s signature,
then the owners and tenants should be notified prior to filing these
violations. This section of law must be revisited and redefined.

Time precludes me from reviewing the other 28 items on the
September 24th letter. However, I must address item 14 regarding the
park lighting. This violation was not cited for correction. No reason and

no comments were given.
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If you do nothing else, you must read the HCD letter of September
24th to me and compare it to the citations I listed in my letter to them. If
you wish, I'll send a copy to John Tennyson.

If the committee wishes to pursue this action further, please let me
know. And I thank you very much.

SENATOR DUNN: Okay. Our next witness is Dave Burwell.

MR. DAVE BURWELL: Yes. Dave Burwell, Region 4 Manager,
GSMOL, Northern California, Shasta County.

The problems that are being experienced in mobilehome
communities are not new, but instead are a long-time thing. This is the
reason GSMOL came into existence some 40 years ago. It is now no
longer a ma and pa manufactured home community, but a money
making affair. The community owners have brought in community
management corporations. These corporations have on their staff their
own attorneys, and on their payroll. Now even community homeowner
resident meetings are facing these same attorneys. It is no longer just a
simple community owner/management resident meeting. The
manufactured home community residents cannot afford to have such
legal guidance and comfort. The manufactured home communities were
once affordable housing, but now are facing large companies.

The bill I’d like to bring up here right now is coming up for -- a new
bill that will be brought into legislation -- AB 2382, which improves
enforcement through Attorney General, by Assemblymember Ellen
Corbett. This bill, as | asked questions just the other day in a meeting, I
found out that it has not been mandated. It’s a bill that comes back and
kind of leaves it where, “if,” “maybe,” not direct. This bill was not
mandated. If this bill were to be mandated, it would cost taxpayers

money | was told, and we don’t want that. Well, tell me then, what good
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would this bill be? Same as others. If it is only a bill written to say, well
if you have the time, or if you have the space, or if you want to, you can
enforce this if you choose. There is no enforcement in this type of bill
writing. The only thing that I see is, willful intent to make the
mobilehome owners think that they will have enforcement. This is only
leading the sheep into the slaughter house.

As far as the taxpayers paying, they really are not paying out on
this bill to cover the -- they already are paying out to cover the expense of
the state offices.

If thi‘s bill were to be mandated, there would not be a cost to the
taxpayers for the revenue would be coming only from the person, or
persons, that broke the law in the form of a fine, jail time, or fine and jail
time. Then add to this the fact that the person or persons that broke the
law would also have to correct the problems that the law stated in the
first place.

Collecting the fines or revenue, from the person or persons who
broke the law only, would not be affecting the taxpayers. What is the
problem in doing this? I can bet that after a few of these cases were
tried, there would be fewer mobilehome park owners on both sides --
problems on both sides. Make the problem maker pay for these expenses
for a while and the word would get around that this is very expensive and
it would be much cheaper to fix the problem in the first place.

Please, let’s stop the false hope of writing bills. Stop taking the
homeowners to the slaughter house. This bill, as well as others, are
written up so the mobilehome owner has to either lose their home, or live
with it, because these bills are so that an attorney will be needed. The

mobilehome business cannot afford this. Just make all mobliehome laws
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mandated and criminal. Which would go back to, again, “shall” as
Coleman and Steve have already said. Thank you.

SENATOR DUNN: Okay. David, thank you. Mr. Irwin.

MR. FRED IRWIN: My name is Fred Irwin, and we’re down here
from Corning, California. We live in the Woodson Bridge Estates. I've
been the president of Chapter 1648 since 1996. And | have a document
here I've written concerning Civil Code Section 798.44, which is the
section of the MRL that concerns liquefied petroleum gas.

The following document concerns 798.44 and the inability to
enforce it. 1 call it, the years of 798.44.

I remember reading in the Californian that a few owners -- this was
a few years ago -- of mobilehome parks within the state of California had
been caught gouging the residents of their parks on the cost of liquefied
petroleum gas known as, LPG. I thought at the time that someone
should write a law to cover those folks who lived in mobilehome parks
that use sub-metered LPG.

In 1999, Senator Chesbro did just that. The law was passed,
signed and went into the MRL as Civil Code Section 798.44 and became
a law on January 1, 2000. The law stated that in a mobilehome park
where residents could only buy LPG from a park owner that the most he
could charge his residents was 110 percent of his actual cost and the
amount he was paying from the distributor had to be posted in a
conspicuous place for all residents to view.

The park owners soon found a loophole in the law by stating the
residents did not have to buy LPG from them and gave them permission
to buy it from some other distributors, and even furnished them names
of the other distributors. That was considered a loophole in the law, but

Senator Chesbro did not give up writing the law to close the loophole.
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The amended law stated that even though owners gave the
residents the right to buy LPG from another source, he still could not
charge his residents more than 110 percent of his costs and that his
costs had to be displayed for all residents to view it.

I live in a park that has never complied with the original law nor
the amended law. 1 am also the president of GSMOL Chapter 1648 and
thought it was up to myself to find out why the owner would not comply
with the law.

In January 2000, I sent a letter to the then park owner asking him
why he was not complying with 798.44? I was promptly told that the
residents could buy their LPG from someone else. And that was the
loophole in the law. But, there was nothing else done the rest of the year
because the law was being amended to go into effect January 1, 2001;
the amended law.

The park was sold late in the year 2000, and we also had new park
managers.

In January 2001, the new owner was not complying with the new
law so I inquired why he would not comply with 798.44? I was told he
was exempt from complying with the law because the residents could
buy LPG from another source. And he had sent letters to all residents
telling them that -- where they could buy the gas and what they would
have to do to have new tanks installed on their property according to
HCD.

In the meantime, the park manager had called, I think, most
everybody in the park and told them they could -- certainly they could
install tanks on their own property, but it was going to be more
expensive; they would have to pay leases on the tanks; they would have

to pay extra money to have it installed; besides the cost of the LPG was
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at a premium and they were going to pay more than what they were
paying from the park owner. So everybody listened to him and they
decided not to install tanks. So he complied -- he said he was complying
with the law and that he was exempt because of that.

Well, what the manager did not tell the rest of the park residents
was that even though he had given them permission to do that, he still
had to comply with part A and B of that law, which stated that he could
not charge more than 110 percent of the cost or that he had to place his
actual cost in a place for everyone to view it.

So, I then talked to Bettie Thompson, who is a manager from
Region 11, and she says, “Go to your district attorney.”

So, 1 thought, well, I'll try going to the district attorney, which was
a waste of my time. It was just absolutely a waste of time. I called the
district attorney and he says, “No, we do not handle cases like that. We
handle criminal cases only. But if you want to talk to the Sheriff, maybe
he’ll help you out.”

So, I called the Sheriff. He says, “We’ll send a deputy out there and
make out a report.”

Well, the deputy came out to the house and 1 gave him the whole
story and he says, “I'll get back to you.” I haven’t seen him to this day.
And that was better than a year ago.

So, then, I went to work for the undersheriff of Tehama County in
the STARS Program. And, [ went to him and I said, “Mr. Undersheriff,
how about helping me out?”

He said, “Sure. I've got a tech sergeant here that handles all that
kind of stuff.” And you know, I haven’t heard from him to this day.

So, the point is, that I have had no luck trying to enforce this law at

all. And I think what we need is some kind of enforcement like you've got
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right here out on the highway. If youre coming down the highway at
85mph, and the black and white stops you and he says, “Hey, you're
going 85mph, here’s a ticket. Show up on Friday the 13th, and you’re

»

going to have to pay $345 or go to jail for 345 days.” We need something
like that; somebody with enough guts and education to come along and
say, “You're violating, and if you don’t straighten it out you’re going to
pay.” That is, in my opinion, the kind of enforcement we need.

I thank you. That’s all I have to say about that.

No, I've got one more thing.

I asked the new manager just recently, “What are you going to do
about 798.44?” She looked at me like it was the Chinese New Year or
something. I said, “No, it’s a law that the park owner is supposed to
comply with.”

And she says, “Okay. Ill talk to him about it and he’ll get back to
you and arrange a meeting.”

So, a few days later, [ says, “Where’s the park owner. Is he going to
have a meeting?”

She says, “He won'’t even talk to you.”

And that, today, is where the problem is in Woodson Bridge
Estates. I can’t get anybody to do anything.

SENATOR DUNN: Okay. All right. Thank you very much, Bill,
David, Fred. Our next three presenters are, Barbara McLaughlin, Louise
Hanson and Jean Phillips.

MS. BARBARA MCLAUGHLIN: My name is Barbara McLaughlin.
I'm from Paradise, California. The cards going around now with pictures
on them are conditions that I fought for four years to get corrected. And,
I did get those corrected by going to the city, fire marshal, and just

letting them know I had pictures.
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This next card coming around, which will be the fifth one, shows
how brave the park owners have gotten.

My mobilehome is built on a slope in a created space. I was flooded
for four years and I kept complaining. And finally, my space started to
collapse and it did damage to my mobilehome. And, I finally convinced
them that they had to do something about it. So they decided to put a
retaining wall up to stop my space from collapsing, and in the process,
without my permission, took down my 10 x 14 shed, which was a good
shed. It could have been moved over, but the contractor said it was
faster just to tear it down and put a new one up.

I got a letter from the property manager’s attorney saying that they
would replace my shed with the same size and quality.

Then, we got a new property manager. And last September, she
gave us an agreement in writing that they would replace my shed. In the
meantime, all my things are stored in my son’s extra bedroom.

Finally, just recently, the park manager told me, no, they are not
going to replace my shed. So, they have taken my property, torn down
without my permission and now have refused to give it back to me. To
me, that’s stealing. They also, at one point, were going to build another
shed and the contractor shoved up some dirt, loose dirt, didn’t pack it
down; no gravel; no sand; and was going to pour a cement slab on top of
the loose dirt and put a shed on it. Which I complained and they
stopped. But anyway, there’s a picture of my site. And I still don’t have
the shed.

The final thing is a sewage backup. For almost five years, I've had
sewage backup that comes up in my shower; has ruined my bathroom

floor; comes up in people’s bathtubs. We had sewage running down the
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hill for a year on top of the ground and they used garden lines trying to
correct it.

We also have inadequate lighting in the park. An electrical pole fell
down; they tied it to a tree with a rope. Here’s a picture of it.

I won’t give you this one. This one just shows how [ keep my place
and what I've done to it since | started.

My suggestions are: That park rules be part of rental agreements.
There is an implied contract. When you move in a park and they give
you a set of rules, you believe this is the way they’re going to conduct
themselves and run the park.

Just recently, our property manager said, “We can change the rules
any time we want. It doesn’t matter what the tenants say.” And that’s
not right. It should be with the vote of the tenants if they’re going to
change those rules.

Secondly, managers are usually not qualified and they should have
to take some training. Even a babysitter, day care provider, has to take
some training. And I think the state should mandate that mobilehome
park managers should take some kind of training, because, they don’t
know the laws. And they pick somebody off the street, and I don’t think
the owners really want them to know the laws, quite frankly.

I believe that the inspectors, somebody should put some pressure
on the inspectors. They become friends, usually, with the park
managers from what I've seen. And I believe that the inspectors should
give them a certain length of time to fix a complaint, and if they haven’t,
he should turn it into the DA.

And incidentally, Coleman, the Health and Safety Code, I believe
it’s 18400, says the DA “shall” bring a suit, not, “may.”
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And that’s a problem with your laws that the Legislature has
brought up, sometimes they conflict. The MRL says the DA “may” bring
a suit. The Health and Safety Code, at least what I pulled up on the
internet, says, “shall.”

Incorrect?

SENATOR DUNN: If it’s a nuisance.

MS. MCLAUGHLIN: Well, but it also says that it can be declared a
nuisance.

SENATOR DUNN: Barbara, we're not here to argue that issue, so
please, wrap it up.

MS. MCLAUGHLIN: And when the inspector turns it over to the
DA, then the DA should have a way to fine them. That would support
the enforcement. If they don’t pay the fine, put a lien on the mobilehome
park.

Thank you for your time.

SENATOR DUNN: Senator Sher.

SENATOR BYRON SHER: Senator, I just wanted to thank all of
the witnesses for coming. I have to go to another meeting and wanted to
excuse myself, not because of lack of interest. And I want to work with
you to try to address these problems. And thanks to all of the witnesses
who have come long distances to tell us about their problems and
concerns.

SENATOR DUNN: Thank you very much, Senator Sher. Louise
Hanson.

MS. LOUISE HANSON: Thank you, Sir. Thank you for the
opportunity to speak for the mobilehome residents regarding the lack of

enforcement of Health and Safety Codes.
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I live in a mobilehome park that is not maintained. Our water
supply is frequently contaminated with bacteria, and, in fact, we cannot
even shower in it without becoming ill.

SENATOR DUNN: Louise, let me interrupt you one more time. So
folks who could not hear you in the back, can you restate your name and
your place of residence?

MS. HANSON: [I'm sorry.

SENATOR DUNN: That’s all right. Don’t worry about it.

MS. HANSON: I'm Louise Hanson. I live in San Diego County, a
little town called Cotati. And I'm the president of the homeowners
association for our park which is called, Heavenly Oaks, but certainly
isn'’t.

Anyway, our water supply is frequently contaminated with bacteria.
We can’t even shower in it without becoming ill and requiring emergency
medical care. Yet, the CAO of San Diego County states that we should
expect our water to be contaminated from time to time. He also tells us
that it is a seasonal problem. Unfortunately, the season is 365 days
long.

However, the County was quick to act to cleanup a sewage spill into
the seasonal creek next to national forest land; required the owner to
rebuild a septic field. Apparently, it’s far more important that wild
animals and fish be protected than humans. Even though the sewage
backs up into our homes periodically, the County will not insist that he
remove tree roots from the sewer lines leading into our homes.

Since the laws that are passed are routinely ignored by the
agencies that are supposed to enforce them, the only logical action to
take is to abolish rental mobilehome parks; make all parks resident

owned. With low interest financing available to the residents, even parks
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like mine, with all systems failing, could be rehabilitated and it would
require over $3 million. There should be some way that tenants can
purchase these parks at a reasonable price, not an inflated one.

Regarding last year’s propane law, we’re now paying a much higher
percentage for propane than we did before it was passed. Our owner
pays 73 cents a gallon and charges us $1.79 a gallon.

And putting in your own tanks, there’s an up front cost of several
hundred dollars, making it impossible for those on fixed incomes to do
so. Also, in many cases, the lots are too small to accommodate one
because of the fire department’s required setbacks. This law is virtually
worthless to us homeowners, but it has given the park owners another
way to gouge the tenants.

The county park inspector will approve any mobilehome on any lot
regardless of size and regulations. We have one that was approved even
though no car can drive onto the carport because there’s a three-foot
high telephone connection in the center of the entrance to the carport.

The park inspector also says, that because this park was a
campground in the 1950s, he must allow camp trailers on any lot, even
though there have been only mobilehomes on those lots for the last 40
years. The park is permitted for an RV section of eleven dedicated lots,
but now has many more than that, probably without changing the
permit. With old camp trailers next to new manufactured homes, this
drives down our home’s value even more.

I would not be surprised to come home from work someday and
find another travel trailer up on my roof with a permit from the park
inspector.

And these are samples of our clean water.
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SENATOR DUNN: And can you just briefly tell us what each of
those are, please.

. MS. HANSON: Okay. This is a seasonal problem. It’s not
supposed to be brown except in the summer. Well, this is a park water
sample taken in October and you can see the crud on the bottom.

This was a park sample taken the next day and it’s clear and I
panicked and thought they must have been using the well that was
condemned.

And this is a current sample, with all the crud on the bottom.

And these are filters that are just loaded with this brown stuff.

SENATOR DUNN: Filters out of what?

MS. HANSON: Filters out of our home filtering system. Everyone
has had to put in a filter.

And this is the winter filter. The summer filters you have to change
almost on a weekly basis because they’re that bad, and they’re supposed
to last three months.

SENATOR DUNN: All right. Thank you. Then let’s go to Jean.

MS. JEAN PHILLIPS: My name is Jean Phillips. [ live in Napa,
California. And I’'m regional manager of Region 2, which extends from
Solano and Marin Counties in the south up to the Oregon border.

My concern has been, for the last year | have spent countless hours
at meetings in both Santa Rosa, and now in Vallejo, regarding the MRL
798.49, and that of course would be, D4, which relates to property taxes.
That’s an essential point that I make, although in Santa Rosa there was
a change in the entire ordinance not to the advantage of the
homeowners. And my effort there was to be as supportive as possible to
help those people get some kind of protection from an ordinance that was

written clearly for a park owner.
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The ordinance got through and I have included it in my packet
here, my letters which were my testimony at several of those meetings,
and the final outcome of it. 1 know there is not time for all this.

We’re still not through with this, I’'m sure, and I think it may end in
the courts before it’s all over because of the fact that these people are
under great stress in every direction. And the only thing they took out of
the Sonoma County ordinance and put in the City of Santa Rosa
ordinance was their arbitration process. And, with that dimension of
cruelty within it, it’s back to serfdom. And as far as [ can see, it will be
useless to have an arbitrator, because they’ll have to go along with what
the ordinance says and abide by it.

In Vallejo, the problem is property tax. And we have in both
instances, it’s been a change of financing either due to partners
separating, and in the instance of Vallejo, park owners who are new to
the park, they’re passing through their tax to the homeowners. They
have noticed them with that. It’s now in a state of being held up because
we are in the final hearing, so it’s still a matter that is not yet decided.
We do feel in each instance where my own testimony, I think, is reflected
very well by the representatives of the parks. And there are two parks
that are being affected by the same property tax inclusion, not the same
park owners, but the same attorney. And it’s very important that this be
a win-win thing for the homeowners position, because otherwise it’s
tantamount to highway robbery, as far as I'm concerned.

It is important also to note, that in both Santa Rosa and Vallejo, we
have had the participation of Maurice Priest, as our legislative advocate
for GSMOL. He sent excellent letters explaining the intent of this

particular item.
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There is the misimpression, I believe it’s a misimpression, and
unfortunately, the staff of these communities seem to buy these things.
And it seems as though the park owner attorney is somehow getting the
word to these people before it comes before the Rent Board, or the city
council, because there is staff support for the park owner position, and
it’s very blatantly clear.

However, that being an aside, there is hope because the council
members seem to be wise to the importance of the clarification on the
reason that the property tax should not be passed through. If it is to be
included at all, it must be included as part of the operating expenses and
counted in as part of the fair return equation. That is also a problem
because of the fact that they never come clean with the fact that they
have taken IRS deductions for either taxes, or anything else that they will
benefit by, including road work, which is one of the other assessments
being put upon the same residents of Vallejo Mobile Estates, which is
one of the parks that is being assessed for not just taxes, but road work,
as well.

And it’s very important that we get the Corbett bill strengthened,
mandated -- this was a word that was used earlier -- and see that there
is protection and see that these people know that state law supercedes
mobilehome law at a local level. That’s what they’re trying to say, “Our
ordinances can say what they want to, to heck with the state law.”

And I will pass my entire packet to you. As I say, there’s more here
than I could possibly say in five minutes. And thank you very much for
your time and help.

SENATOR DUNN: Jean, thank you very much. The Sergeant is

coming up behind you. If you give it to him, he’ll make sure to give it to
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us. Thank you, the three of you, very much. Let’s go onto our next three
presenters. They are, Gary Ellingwood, Bettie Thompson and Joan Hall.

MR. GARY ELLINGWOOD: I'm Gary Ellingwood of Santa Rosa.
The Civil Code has been pretty much -- everybody has basically talked
about it. I believe that 90 percent of our problems would cease to exist if
it was enforced in some way. I've already presented this. Anyway, |
think I'll move on.

Fair rate of return: The park owners say that we are denying them
their fair rate of return during arbitration because they they’re not
getting their raise. Well, when we go to sell our homes, they deny us to
sell our homes in the park, and that’s denying us our fair rate of return.
Because, basically, used homes, used mobilehomes, there’s not too many
parks that will accept a used one, only new. And it’s so costly to move
them, and they’re really not mobile.

I'd like to move on to the inspectors. We have a state inspector in
our area and I'm not afraid to name him. His name is Ron Bellevia . He
basically says he doesn’t have the manpower. He’s only one person. He
can’t do it all. And I talked with him in our park two weeks ago on a
matter that he could have handled in two sentences, faxing it or mailing
it to our park owner, but instead of doing that he talked with me for over
an hour, but he doesn’t have time.

And last, I'll make this short and sweet. The Civil Code should be
done, I believe, in Spanish, and it is not. Fifty percent of the residents in
California mobilehomes are Spanish, | understand.

SENATOR DUNN: Let me interrupt you, Gary. The Mobilehome
Residency Law is available in Spanish from the Department of Housing
Community Development. [ believe they’re working on it. We also have it

available in Spanish. GSMOL has it available in Spanish. The park
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owners are not required to provide it to the residents in Spanish,
however. 1 don’t know if that’s the issue you’re trying to address.

MR. ELLINGWOOD: Well, this is what I got from the Ombudsman.
It basically says, go to your Barnes & Noble or Barclays Bookstore and
purchase it yourself. So, over the last year, I did it myself, and I'm
passing it out in our park in Spanish. I think the Spanish people
deserve a better break than theyre getting. They do represent a vast
majority of us in our parks. And, they’re not getting it. Like I say, this is
what I got from the Ombudsman here. Thank you very much.

SENATOR DUNN: Okay. Thank you very much. Bettie.

MS. THOMPSON: I'm Bettie Thompson from Diamond Springs, El
Dorado County, and I want to thank you very much for allowing us to
come before you, and John and Melanie.

In El Dorado County, we have -- I'm head of the Homeowners
Coalition for Mobilehome Parks, and we are a non-profit public benefit
corporation. Joan Hall, here, is my vice president. We are fighters. We
work very hard and we fight very hard. We intimidate people; the Board
of Supervisors and so forth. Right now, we’re working on rent control, or
rent stabilization, and sooner or later it’s going through. However, we
have gone to court, small claims court, with parks 15 times in El Dorado
County, and we won every time. And, we have trained the judges
because they had never heard of the Mobilehome Residency Law until we
started working it. And we’re training them to be mobilehome judges.

But, now we have about 13 cases before the district attorney, and
he’s had them since, oh, last August, and he is just now taking action on
them. And the one’s that we have with the district attorney are all

propane violations, and very flagrant ones.
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And, we have one thing that we’re doing and suggest to others too,
anytime there’s an election for Board of Supervisors, or City Council, or
district attorney, we’re having them put in writing that they will enforce
the Mobilehome Residency Law before we work for them.

And, I just wanted to thank you very much for all your help.

And also, is there such a thing as -- does the Attorney General have
the authority to give a mandate to the district attorneys to enforce?

SENATOR DUNN: The answer is, no. He does not.

MS. THOMPSON: He does not. Thank you.

SENATOR DUNN: Okay. All right. Joan.

MS. JOAN HALL: Hi. I'm very happy to be here and to testify
before vou today. I'm from Cameron Park. There is nothing that I have
heard today that surprises me, because we’ve all been through the mill,
and we know it.

One of the little bureaucratic things that has not been mentioned
before is, that we had trouble in our park with fire hydrants that did not
work. Finally, finally, finally, the park owner did a partial job on
repairing the system, but not to the extent that the fire department
wanted done. So, what had happened was, when things weren'’t being
done, I called the fire chief, ] had been working with him, and I said,
“Would you please cite our park owner?” He told me they were very
reluctant to do that because he was a businessman. Now, that doesn’t
make any sense to me.

But, primarily one of the things that I wanted to talk to you about
today was the fact that I understand a year or two ago, that there are
funds available, or perhaps, that the HCD can turn over inspections to

the county. Is this so, do you know?
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SENATOR DUNN: There are circumstances where the local
jurisdiction can takeover the inspection responsibility. That is correct.
What we’re finding, actually, is the reverse is occurring. Where local
jurisdictions have in the past taken it over, they’re trying to turn it back
to HCD.

John, would you like to add to that?

MR. JOHN TENNYSON: That’s true. But with regard to Fire Code
enforcement, Senator Dunn also had some legislation a few years ago,
that permits a local fire department, city, county or fire district, to take
on specified Fire Code enforcement, such as the equipment access, fire
hydrants, etc., and there have been three jurisdictions that have done so
in the last year since that bill has been effective. So, your jurisdiction
could also do that. They need to contact Mr. Rivers, with HCD, or
someone else with HCD, on the process that’s involved with that.

MS. HALL: Oh. Thank you, John. [ was wondering because it
seemed that I had just a smattering of information, and I know that there
would be certain fees that would be applicable. But, I was wondering if
some of our DMV monies, as far as our licensing goes each year, that
could those funds automatically be given to the county, or transferred to
the county, in order to provide for a person? You know, when you’re
kind of up in the boonies where we are, it’s pretty difficult when you call
down into Sacramento, you can rarely get anybody out -- you know, you
can’t get them out. Maybe three weeks from now, maybe.

MR. TENNYSON: Well, DMV monies would not -- you can’t take
DMV money for the Department of Motor Vehicle functions and transfer

them to the county for fire enforcement. It wouldn’t be appropriate.

36



MS. HALL: Well, I just meant that was -- you know, when you’re
paying your fees on your -- what would be licensing for your
mobilehomes, they’re all paid to DMV, and [ was wondering if some of --

MR. TENNYSON: No. They’re paid to the HCD, the Department of
Housing and Community Development. On your car, theyre paid to the
DMV.

MS. HALL: Oh. Okay. All right. I'm sorry.

MR. TENNYSON: Now if your county takes over total enforcement,
then yes, they would get the fees that would otherwise go to HCD,
because now they’re doing the enforcement.

MS. HALL: [ just wondered if this would be a possibility for a lot of
us to think about in terms of more local control.

Senator Dunn, I thank you. I don’t think I have anything to add.
It’s already been said. Thank you.

SENATOR DUNN: Okay. Thank you very much, the three of you.
Let’s go onto our next three. They are Irma Hart, Marty Brittan and
Albert Johnson.

MS. IRMA HART: Thank you, Senator Dunn. [ really appreciate
this opportunity. And, I have just a little article that I cut out of the
paper. It is the Bee News, San Jose. It says, “A San Jose landlord has
been sentenced to live two months in one of her own rundown
apartments, wear an electric monitoring bracelet to make sure she stays
there.” I would like to see that in our parks.

Regional officer for WMA, Doug Johnson, wrote an article called,
“Day In Court,” and it made the seniors in mobilehome parks look very
bad. He was very rude, and the article was written just before we went to
small claims court over the problems in our park, which is Folsom Manor

Mobilehome Park in Folsom. And, we did win the small claims court.
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Then thanks to Maurice Priest, when he appealed the small claims, we
won that also this spring. So, I'm feeling really good about that.

But, what I do not feel good about is, we had an inspection in
June of 2001. We have approximately 60 homes. There hasn’t been any
improvements. And then the new owners took over. We have had three
improvements only. And, the things I want to talk about -- Mayor Jeff
Starsky is now councilman, or was councilman at the time, had an
article in the paper that this park had been cited before. So it’s very well
known, the problems we have.

Endangerment: The walkways are not lighted, except we only have
SMUD lighting in there. They've taken out all of the lights that are at
each walkway. And, we had a broken gas line which resulted from
digging to repair a water line that had run underneath number 23 Cedar
Way that had been broken, and it ran for two years before we could get
anyone there to repair it. In the process, it was the habit of these people,
the park owners, to have people who were not very good at their job, and
some who were not licensed to do the particular thing that they did.
They broke a gas line. And, you will see in the folder that I've given you,
that we had to have HAZMAT out there. We had to have ambulances. It
was disastrous. It could have been -- if it had caught fire it would have
been not only our park, but Lakeside, which Dr. Brittan lives in. And we
had to evacuate. It was so serious, and yet, nothing was said about it. It
wasn'’t in the paper, nothing.

We have electrical pedestal problems, or master meter. I think
you’ve mentioned that in your call, that master meters were calling it
pedestals.

Six people have had very serious problems. SMUD even took one

pedestal completely out so that it could not even be attempted to repair;

38



it was so poor. And, we just have not been able to get any help on those
at all. These six people paid for their own expenses. And, we’ve written
to the city. We've had inspectors out, and nothing is done.

We've had standing water; 28 years under number 10; and, they've
used a pump for all these years. The city inspector did come out. We
were able to get some help there, but the pump is still being used
because the water has not been stopped.

And, the other people in the park all have problems with their
pedestals. The repairmen who are willing to come to our park, there’s
many electrical men who will not even come to that park, but the one
who does come, says that everyone in there is going to have a problem.
They are that serious. So we’re pretty worried about that.

The pool has been unkempt. The new owners have added a new
pump. We do not have heat in the pool, which is uncomfortable for the
elderly people. They put cold water in it to fill it up because it has a leak,
which is not addressed.

SENATOR DUNN: We need to bring it to a conclusion here.

MS. HART: Okay. In 1995, Mr. Crowle, was the inspector for the
city, and he wrote up a good article about the retaining walls. And so, we
have a serious problem with retaining walls. We have a serious problem
with trees. We have letters of interference with sales of homes and lack
of maintenance, denied clubhouse, that kind of thing. And that will be
all enclosed in your folder.

And, like I say, we've had three band-aid type things. They put an
electrical light at the entrance finally, but it was hooked up to one of the
homeowners electricity. They were paying the bill until they found out
about it. Now we have an ugly looking entrance light, but we do have a

light.
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MR. TENNYSON: Your five minutes has expired, I'm sorry to say.

MS. HART: Okay. Very good. Thank you so much.

SENATOR DUNN: Thank you, Irma. Mr. Brittan.

MR. MARTY BRITTAN: I could go into how much her park has
suffered. Everything she says is true, and a little more besides. The
park owner has been absolutely recalcitrant. And in spite of losing in
court, she has simply refused to do anything about it. She then sold out.
The people who came in, promised to make changes and have only
carried out a small number of those.

This retaining wall is between my park, which is Lake Park Estates,
and sort of lies immediately up the slope. The water drains out of our
park under this retaining wall, which is a pretty shoddy job. The
retaining wall is on their property, that i1s, on Folsom Manor’s property,
and the owners of that park are responsible for it.

Now, you cannot stop the flow of that water. It’s due to the lay of
the land; the water is flowing along on top of bedrock. However, there
should be some mandatory drainage there to take that water out from
under people’s houses. There are about 8 or 10 houses that in one way
are affected during the winter. And I've seen a couple of houses with
their skirting off completely so they can dry out underneath. And, one
house has had to pump, as she said, sump pump for many years. But,
others have to use them periodically.

Now, we’re in the City of Folsom, and HCD has handed off to the
City of Folsom for code enforcement. I would say the enforcement has
been lackadaisical, to say the least. Complaints are not followed up on.
Things are stretched out. I think there needs to be some kind of state

law, regulations, that would put a time limit on this kind of a thing.
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If you can work hard enough, you can get most of them into the
Health and Safety Code. But, this particular owner ignores it. Ours
doesn’t. I admit, we’re in a pretty decent park. Although, I have
complaints too, which I won’t go into. But, I do believe there needs to be
some teeth in the law. And perhaps, the Legislature, as well as HCD,
need to be a little bit, shall [ say, imaginative, on how they work out
some of these things.

We also have rather severe speed problems. We’ve had some
fatalities in front of my park, in particular. In that particular case, the
city states that CalTrans is the ruling authority on that. Although, it’s
my impression, if they really wanted to, they could ask for a study, to try
to do something about it.

But, there is this common pattern of one agency handing off
excuses to another. And, I'm not sure whether HCD is doing a better job
than the cities are. I think there is so much variability there locally, that
some are doing a good job, and some aren’t.

But, at any rate, we might look into some sort of a sub agency that
would be created to enforce laws for mobilehome /manufactured home
parks only. Thank you.

SENATOR DUNN: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Brittan. Mr. Johnson.

MR. ALBERT JOHNSON: Il try to get this to you. My voice is
kind of bad, but I'll try. This is something entirely different than you've
been hearing.

My complaint is on Section 1680 of the California Health and
Safety Code for mobilehomes and recreation vehicle drains. Now, not all

mobilehomes let recreation vehicles in, but there’s a lot of them that do.
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The Subsection(A) for mobilehomes is very satisfactory for schedule
40ABS piping, and is doing a very good job, and is very easy to build,
and has also been improved by the users.

Section (B), requires recreational vehicles to have a non-collapsible
hose having a smooth interior finish, which is a very good thing. But,
until this time, they have not been able to install it for the lack of parts,
therefore, it has not been used. Now that parts are available it makes a
greater sewer system. | make them very cheap, and they can make them
themselves. I'll show them how.

And, then we go into Appendix E, which is international pipe fitters
code on how to handle Section 40 pipe.

Section (E)(8), all drainage sewage connection lines Schedule 40,
shall be located in trenches of sufficient depth to be free of breaking with
traffic or other movements (they don’t say what the movements are). The
movements are, expansion and contraction from being exposed to
differences in temperature. Cold nights and heat of the days will cause
enough movement to break either end of the connector.

RVs are not as stable as mobilehomes as far as tipping. And, RV
sewage lines often run sometimes as much as 20 feet. The longer the
pipe, the more difference in expansion. It will amount to about 5/8 of an
inch to a 10 foot piece. And when you put that pipe on, it’s solid, firm,
hard. And when the wind blows your vehicle a little bit, it’s going to
break the pipe right out of the tank under the RV. I've experienced it
myself.

The second sentence of Subsection(B) shall be omitted in its
entirety. In other words, don’t try to use Subsection (40)(B) pipe on an
RV. You’ll have more trouble than you’ll know what to do with. And it
should be taken out of that code entirely.
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Now, HSC 18400.3 does not cover Section 1680 problems.
Therefore, they will never be inspected and never be corrected.

And that is all the truth.

SENATOR DUNN: Okay. All right. Thank you, the three of you,
very much. Let’s go to our next two, and then we’re going to actually tap
into our reserve list. As you can see, we're a little ahead schedule. Not a
lot, but a little. I want to extend a thank you to all the presenters so far,
for keeping their comments to our five-minute or under requirement. Let
me invite up Judy Nevis and Tony Ban and our first reserve list is CeCi
Matthews. And again, let me call one more time for CeCi Matthews.
Donna Simpson, who we called earlier. I don’t know if she was a little
late in arriving. No. All right, let’s go to our second reserve, and that’s
Suzette Hanson. Judy, why don’t we start with you, please.

MS. JUDY NEVIS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members. My
name is Judy Nevis. I'm the Chief Deputy Director for the Department of
Housing and Community Development. I'm pleased to be here today on
behalf of our Director, Julie Bornstein. Also with me in the room are,
Dan Rivers, who oversees our field inspection operations, and Ms. Renee
Franken, our Legislative Director.

Given these time constraints, I'm going to keep these comments
very brief. However, Ms. Franken and Mr. Rivers and I will remain
following the conclusion of testimony to answer any questions and obtain
information from those participants today who would like us to follow up
on any of their specific concerns.

Today there are 5,595 mobilehome parks and special occupancy RV
parks subject to the Mobilehome Parks Act in California. So, that’s
about 461,000 spaces, and HCD has enforcement responsibility in 3,948

parks, and there are 85 local jurisdictions that are the enforcement
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agency in about 1,600 parks. So, as you probably know, either HCD or
local enforcement agencies may enforce the act, but it really is a local
option; if the local government chooses not to do it, then HCD must.

The State doesn’t have an enforcement role for the Mobilehome
Residency Law. The Mobilehome Ombudsman Office within HCD does
try to assist in resolving mobilehome and certain park disputes,
addressing over 1,400 written complaints annually. The majority of
those require some type of department field investigation.

But today, we are focusing on mobilehome park enforcement.

We are committed to ensuring the health and safety of those
residing in mobilehome parks, and we’ve tried to make every effort to hire
and retain as many inspectors as our resources allow.

Since 1990, the number of spaces under HCD'’s jurisdiction has
increased by about 21 percent. In the last 20 years, HCD’s workload in
the mobilehome parks program has almost tripled, but staff is at about
half the level it was 20 years ago.

As the Select Committee’s background report points out, this is the
result of static fee levels compared to rising staff costs over time. During
this period, HCD has assumed obligations for park maintenance
inspection programs, implemented earthquake safety tie down
inspections and approvals, and we’ve continued to receive workload
return by local jurisdictions.

Since implementation of the park maintenance inspection in 1990,
HCD inspected over 3,800 parks and over 200,000 lots, and there were
over 500,000 violations. We routinely monitor about 20 cases that are
pending with local district attorneys, and we issue hundreds of last
chance letters to try to correct these violations. We also are continuing

to absorb workload that comes to us from local jurisdictions.
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With regard to the enforcement standards, and that has come up in
the hearing today, after the enactment in 1999 of SB 700, HCD convened
the Manufactured Housing Park Maintenance Inspection Task Force as
required by law. The taskforce includes representatives of Golden State
Manufactured Housing Owners League, the California Manufactured
Housing Resource and Action Association, Western Manufactured
Housing Communities Association, the Senate Select Committee, and
other key groups and individuals. The taskforce initially classified the
violations into various groups. The violation classifications are in
accordance with law.

First, imminent hazards requiring immediate correction.

Then, second, unreasonable risks to life, health or safety, requiring
correction within 30 days.

And, lastly, minor or technical violations which were prohibited
from citation or notation on an inspection record after January 1, 2000.

So, although this classification system was intended to prevent
either HCD, or local enforcement agencies, from over enforcing, it also
means that there are some bothersome violations that folks would like to
see corrected that we can’t always correct. Neither HCD, nor it’s
individual inspectors have the authority to pick and choose which
violations to enforce, but when HCD cannot enforce minor or technical
violations, these may be important to residents or park owners, and
sometimes, this is misinterpreted to be picking and choosing, when we
are trying to comply with the law.

Of course, the Legislature could choose to alter the Mobilehome
Parks Act to give greater priority for correction to violations that don’t

pose an unreasonable risk to life and safety. But unless this were
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accompanied by a significant increase in resources, it would really mean
that the more serious violations would go uncorrected.

Currently, the ultimate enforcement authority is the sole
responsibility of the local district attorney. In HCD’s experience, district
attorney enforcement referrals compete with high profile crimes and
other priorities in the district attorney’s office, and park matters can go
unresolved despite HCD’s best efforts. When this occurs, it contributes
to a perception that we are not actively enforcing the law.

To better ensure effective enforcement of higher level violations,
HCD sponsored AB 1648 (Salinas) last year. That bill was not
successful, but HCD continues to pursue those changes which would
have permitted HCD to issue actual citations with fines to habitual and
egregious violators of the Mobi]ehome‘ Parks Act without the need to
prosecute the violations through the district attorney.

A component of AB 1628 has been introduced in AB 2382 (Corbett),
which has been discussed today. We think that would also be very
helpful.

We are confident that if HCD is provided with the legislative
authority to financially cite mobilehome parks, Mobilehome Park Act
repeat and egregious offenders, the need to file enforcement cases with
the district attorney would decrease substantially.

So, adequate enforcement of the Parks Act is challenging and
complex, but we are committed to effectively carrying out our
responsibilities. We’ll continue to work with the taskforce established by
AB 700, to identify strategies that may be pursued to reduce the
incidence of lessor violations as these are nonetheless important to both

park residents and operators. We would also appreciate the support of
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the committee for the previously mentioned legislative efforts which
would significantly improve our ability to be successful.

So, thank you very much to the committee. And we will remain
after the testimony is complete in case there are individuals who would
like us to follow up on any of their situations.

SENATOR DUNN: We appreciate that very much. Tony.

MR. TONY BAN: Thank you very much, Senator Dunn. And
thank you committee members for having me here today. I’d like to pick
up on where she left off. I'm going to deviate a little bit, but I think I can
get through in less than five minutes.

I am going to recommend a couple of suggestions for amendment to
the Mobilehome Residency Law that you might consider. And the reason
for that is, exactly as she just stated, the so-called lesser violations are,
in fact, numerically the greatest number of complaints that I have
encountered in my tenure as president of the Sahara Mobile Village
chapter of GSMOL, and I live in Mountain View, excuse me for not
identifying myself.

Just to give you some brief examples that I have direct knowledge
of what happened to me: When I purchased my home in October of
1999, I was informed, in violation of the MRL, Mobilehome Residency
Law, that if I wanted to move in | was going to have to tear the porch
down, which was in compliance with all the local ordinances, and I was
going to have to make it smaller so that I could park two vehicles in the
driveway. And, when I called HCD, | was told there was nothing they
could do about it, talk to the Ombudsman. So not knowing any better, I
went ahead and I spent $4,000 over and above the sale price, and I did

exactly as I was told.
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The following year, I advised management, according to our park
rules, that I was going to repaint the mobilehome on the exterior, of
course. And in accordance with those rules, I would submit for their
consideration, some paint samples. | was told not to bother, I'm going to
paint it white, or I'm not going to paint it. I called my attorney. The
attorney told me to disregard that. When I told management that I was
going to disregard that on advice of counsel, I was advised that, “Well,
when I go to sell the home I will either do it, or the buyer is going to be
required to do it before we approve them and we will make sure that they
know that.” This is obviously a direct violation of MRL 798.73.5, but it is
very blatant and it goes on in my park. These are costly issues. They
are not life safety issues. They are not health issues. And, therefore,
they are what HCD classifies as lesser issues. So far, these lesser issues
have cost me over $5,000.

After I joined GSMOL, I received a phone call from the general
manager at the park on November 2, 2000, informing me that | was
wasting my time. But, by the way, since | seemed to be an active
individual, I will be prohibited from distributing any literature, any
notices of meetings, anything of that type, because GSMOL is an
enterprise and cannot carry on its activities. We've pretty well got that
dealt with, but it is just a demonstration of the lengths to which they will
go. These are all, in fact, violations of code. There’s nothing to talk
about. They are code violations and they are violations that concern me.
But as I say, there are numerous other examples in the park. I receive
the complaints. I get the specifics from so many people. I am totally
helpless to provide any help and direction, and I would like to do that,
but I know, as the Ombudsman told me to my face when I called on him,

I should say on the telephone, “There is absolutely nothing we can do, or
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HCD can do to enforce these things.” So, we've given it some thought
and there are two basic suggestions. One of them | seem to be far out,
but let me put it in front of you anyway.

In addition to requiring a business license which is a local
ordinance thing, if mobilehome park owners were licensed by the State of
California, it would immediately open up a path to more expeditious
enforcement of the MRL, because under the license they would be
required to remain in compliance with it, and that would be a very
expeditious, | would think, path to getting enforcement; the threat of
having a license revoked. And I don’t think that this is such an
impossible thing. The State already has a department set up to handle
licensing. I'm in the construction business. I'm very well aware of that.

The other suggestion 1 offer is, that recognizing that MRL is, in fact,
the Civil Code, and that there are avenues already available if there is a
Health and Safety violation, albeit they might be difficult to pursue, there
are avenues available. And if there is a violation of local ordinance, then
the district attorney of the local jurisdiction can indeed get involved. And
normally, we’ve been told in our park, there has to be a local violation of
a local ordinance, otherwise they’re not interested in looking at it.

But as a Civil Code, 1 look on some organizations that 1 have dealt
with; the Department of Defense, the General Services Administration,
and your own CalTrans in the State of California, they have an
administrative review law judge or review board. The administrative
board has the authority to enforce and to make binding decisions on
disputes that arise that are unreconciled with park owners. The only
further authority that they would need is if the park owner, or a resident,
obviously, declined to comply with the decision of an administrative

review board or an administrative law judge. The administrator could
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make the recommendation to the local district attorney to investigate the
possibility of prosecuting a case, since there is a decision made based on
a violation of a state code.

I think these are two suggestions that you might want to look at.
But, certainly, I know better than most people because of the position
with GSMOL, we need to do something to change the paths of
enforcement to the MRL. And I'm sure that if you continue your good
work it’s going to happen, but I would hope that it happens in time to
save a lot of people a lot of money.

There are no lesser violations as far as I'm concerned. There are
only violations. Thank you very much, Senator Dunn and committee
members.

SENATOR DUNN: Thank you, Tony. Suzette, before you start,
Judy, I forgot, when you had identified the other representatives from
HCD, could you introduce them so folks know which ones they are?

MS. NEVIS: This is Mr. Rivers and Ms. Franken.

SENATOR DUNN: Okay. Just so that at the end, since we're
approaching the end here, I wanted to make sure everybody knew who
they were, if there are any follow-up questions of anybody in the
audience, since you made the gracious offer that you’ll stay around a
little bit after.

Suzette, please.

MS. SUZETTE HANSON: I'm Suzette Hanson from Cordova
Mobilehome Estates. And, I thank you for hearing me. Mostly what I
wanted to talk about one of the problems th